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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE EASTERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA

DINH NGUY, No. 2:14-cv-229-MCE-EFB PS
Plaintiff,

V. ORDER AND FINDINGS AND
RECOMMENDATIONS

COUNTY OF YOLO; SUPERIOR
COURT OF THE STATE OF
CALIFORNIA, IN AND FOR THE
COUNTY OF YOLO; DANIEL P.
McGUIRE; JEFF STONE; MARVIN C.
MARX; JOHN C. ORCUTT,; WENDY A
TAYLOR; WILLIAM MARDER,

Defendants.

This matter was before the court on Jathe2014, for hearing on defendants Maguire,
Orcutt, and Taylor’'s motions to dismiss the complaint pursuant to Federal Rule of Civil
Procedure 12(b)(6) (ECF Nos. 5, 6, 17), and fiffisxmotions to strikedefendants Maguire ang
Orcutt’'s motions to dismiss and plaintiff's motitr appointment of an interpreter (ECF Nos.

20, 21). Attorney Cameron Cobden appeared balbef defendant Maguire (erroneously sue

as “McGuire”) and attorney Jason Sommer apgean behalf of defendants Orcutt and Taylof;

plaintiff failed to appear. For the reasons stdteldw, plaintiff's motons are denied, and it is

recommended that defendants’ motions to dismiss be granted.

! The other defendants named in the coinpl&ounty of Yolo, Yolo County Superior
Court, Jeff Stone, Marvin Marx, and William Marder, have not appeared, and the docket d
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l. ProceduraHistory

Plaintiff initiated this action on Janua?y, 2014. ECF No. 1. The complaint purports
assert various federal and state law clainaresj defendants based on conduct related to twa
civil actions that were filed ithe Superior Court of Californi&ounty of Yolo. The first state
court civil case, CV09-3280 apparently resolired manner unsatisfactory to Nguy. He then
filed an action in the same coynurporting to sue three of thé@neys involvedn the earlier
action. That case, CV12-1979 was assigned toriupgeourt Judge Maguire, who is a defend
and moving party in this federal actidrPlaintiff later filed the instant case before this court
naming Judge Maguire and several attorneys indoivehe state court igation as defendants.

On February 14, 2014, defendant Maguind defendant Orcutt moved to dismiss the
complaint pursuant to Federal Rule of CivibBedure 12(b)(6), and noticed their motions for
hearing on March 26, 2014. ECF Nos. 5, 62 1h.violation of this court’s Local Rule 230,
plaintiff failed to timely file either an oppositicor statement of non-opposition to these motio
Therefore, he was order to show cause wingtsans should not be imposed and the hearing
the motions to dismiss was continuedaril 30, 2014. ECF Nol6. On April 7, 2014,
defendant Taylor filed a motion to dismigghich was noticed for hearing on May 14, 2014. T
court therefore continued the hearing on Magaind Orcutt’'s motions to May 14, 2014, so all
three motions could be addsed together. ECF No. 25.

On April 16, 2014, plaintiff filed a responsette order to show cge. ECF No. 19. He
also filed an opposition and a motion to strike ddfnt Orcutt’'s motion to dismiss, ECF No. 2

and an opposition and motion to strike Maguira@tion to dismiss, ECF No. 21. Plaintiff,

however, failed to file an opposition to defendaaylor's motion to dismiss. Therefore, on May

reflect that they have been served. Accordingdydiscussed below, plaintiff will be ordered t¢
show cause why these defenttashould not be dismissed.

% The court takes judicial notice of the prodees involving plaintif's state court case.

Fed. R. Evid. 201Cactus Corner, LLC v. U.S. Dept. of Agrig46 F. Supp. 2d 1075, 1092 (E.D.

Cal. 2004).

% Judge Maguire originally noticed his motifor hearing before the assigned district
judge, but subsequently rere#d it before undersigne&eeECF Nos. 10, 11.
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9, 2014, the court continued the hearing angbnding motions to June 11, 2014, and again
ordered plaintiff to show cause why sanctionsutth not be imposed for his violation of Local
Rule 230, this time with regatd Taylor's motion. Plaintifs response provided no explanatig
for his failure to timely oppose defendants’tna. However, in light of the recommended
disposition of these motions, the March 20 ang/Marders to show cause are discharged.
Plaintiff is admonished however, tHature violations of the federal local rules, or court orde
may result in either monetary or terminating sanctions.

On May 29, 2014, plaintiff filed a responsethe May 9, 2014 order to show cause, in
which plaintiff appears to present argumentspposition to all three motions to dismiss, ECH

No. 36, which the court has considerédso on May 29, 2014, plaintiff filed a motion

n

S

requesting that the court order theRlto enter default against all defendants for failure to file an

answer to his complaint. ECF No. 37.

1. FactualAllegationé

The complaint alleges that plaintiff is tbener of United Bakery, a business located if
West Sacramento. ECF No. 1 1 2.09. Plaintiffnetathat he suffered some undisclosed harn
the hands of Bessamarie Sales, LLC (“Bessamarie”), an ArizonaitlL{ 3.04, and that he
therefore filed suit against Bessamari¢he Yolo County Superior Courtd. § 3.05. Plaintiff
retained defendant Stone tg@resent him in that actiorid. { 3.06. However, plaintiff claims
that Stone failed to properly represent him &yt in the habit obilling Plaintiff for no
cognizable movement in the caseéd. On January 11, 2011, plaint#ént a letter to Stone to
inquire about the status of his case. § 3.07. Plaintiff claimghat Stone responded by
abandoning plaintiff's casdd. Stone then allegedly contad Bessamarie’s attorney “and
conspired with him in which to assert thevlthat Plaintiff Dinh Nguy company United Bakery
must proceed in court WITH AN ATTORNEY.Id. What plaintiff actually means by that
statement is not clear, but the gist of harol appears to be some sort of allegation of

malpractice.

* With the exception of the limited factual aj&ions provided in thisection, plaintiff’'s
47-page complaint consists mostly of legal conclusions.
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Plaintiff subsequently retained defenditdrvin C. Marx torepresent himld. § 3.08.
According to plaintiff, Marx also billed hitwithout doing any cognizable work to prevail or
move upon the caseld. Six months after he was retained,rilanformed plaintiff that he coul
no longer represent himd. Plaintiff then retained defendant Orcutd. 1 3.09. Plaintiff allege
that during the course of representing him, Orauéint into a secret ex parte proceeding with
judge.” Id. After this meeting, Orcutitated to plaintiff, “Thaéven if you win, you’re not going
to get any money.’ld.

As a result, plaintiff filel suit against defendants StoMgrx, and Orcutt in the Yolo
County Superior Courtld.  3.10; Def. Orcutt’s Req. for Jail Notice, ECF No. 8-1 at 521In
that case, plaintiff purported tesert claims he styled as: (1 malpractice; (2) breach of
fiduciary duty; (3) breach of contract, breaxftduty; (4) misconduct, obstruction of justice,
abuse of process; (5) illegalaidonment of case, vindictive refl to obey California Rules of
Professional Conduct Rule 3-700; (6) unjusidmment [extortion] (7) fraud by way of
inducement; (8) negligence; (9)obessional negligence; (10) ®D count. ECF No. 1 § 2.23.

Plaintiff now claims that the Yolo Coun8uperior Court andudlge Maguire obstructed
and frustrated plaintiff's case, and “engaged in abuse of process” in plaintiff's action again
Stone, Marx, and Orcutid. § 3.11. Plaintiff claims he timefited a notice of default, but Judg
Maguire allegedly ignored it. &htiff further alleges that Judgviaguire’s rulings “were always
against . . . Plaintiff, and always for thefBredants, even though each ruling was ILLEGAL ar
against the normal forms of trial as well as being inimical to the concise rule ofliv§3.12.
Plaintiff also alleges that Judge Maguire ignohnesifilings and refused to punish defendants’
wrongful conduct.ld. 1 3.13. The recurrent theme throughalaintiff's allegations involving
Judge Maguire is that plaintiff was repedyadhhappy with the rulings he was receiving.

As to the other defendants, plaintiff ess&lly alleges thatladefendants conspired
together to deprive him of his right to accessaberts, obtain a trial by y, and receive redres

of grievances for injuries caused by defendaidsy 2.21. Based on this conduct, plaintiff

® Page numbers cited herein refer to thassigned by the coustelectronic docketing
system and not those assigned by the parties.
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claims he had no choice but tameve this action to this couftt.Id. § 3.14. The complaint filed
in this court purports to allegeghit causes of action: (1) arrangia fixed unjust contest in cour
(2) failure to give plaintiff lawdll redress of grievances, (3) danof plaintiff's rights to due
process, (4) fraud, (5) denial a€cess to the courts, (6) obstian of justice and abuse of
process, (7) negligence, and (8nspiracy. Within his conspirajaim, plaintiff also alleges
that he “[a]s . . . a naturalizadetnam Citizen, . . . also@ims DISCRIMINATION against all
Defendants.”ld. 1 4.50.

Defendants Maguire, Orcutt, and Taylor hawvaved to dismiss the complaint pursuant
Rule 12(b)(6) for failure to state a claim. E®Qos. 5, 6, 17. In response, plaintiff moved to
strike Judge Maguire @Orcutt’'s motions to dismiss. ECF Nos. 20, 21.

[l. Plaintiff's Motions to Strike Judge Mauire and Orcutt’'s Motions to Dismiss and

Plaintiff's Motion to Appoint an Interpreter

Contained within plaintiff’'s opposition to Marguire and Orcutt’s motions to dismiss is
requests to strike those motions. ECF Nos. 20, 21. Plaintiff’'s oppositions and requests to
are nearly incomprehensible. As far as thetccam discern, plaintiff ®nly basis for moving to
strike is his apparent belief that a motiordiemiss is not an apprapte responsive pleading.
Plaintiff appears to believe that these deferglan® only permitted to file an answer to his
complaint and not a motion to dismiss. ECF. R® at 3-4; ECF No. 21 at 3-4. Plaintiff is
mistaken. Motions pursuant to Rule 12(b)(& appropriate responsive pleadings and are clé
permitted under the Federal Rule of Civil Procedure (“Fed. R. Civ. Bé®Fed. R. Civ. P.
12(b)(6). Accordingly, plaintif§ motions to strike are denied.

Plaintiff also filed a motion requesting ttiae court appoint him an interpreter for the
hearing on defendants’ motionsdsmiss. ECF No. 27. DefenaeOrcutt filed objections to
plaintiff's request for an interpter, ECF No. 29, and plaintiff subguently moved to strike thos
objections. ECF No. 33. Plaififihowever, did not appear tite June 11, 2014, and therefore
1

® Contrary to plaintiff's ontention, this action was not rexred from state court.
5
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plaintiff's motion for appointmendf an interpreter and motion srike Orcutt’s objections are
denied as moot.

V. Rule 12(b)(6) Standard

To survive dismissal for failure to statelaim pursuant to Rule 12(b)(6), a complaint
must contain more than a “formulaic recitatiortlué elements of a causéaction”; it must
contain factual allegations sufficient to “raeseight to relief abovéhe speculative level.Bell
Atl. Corp. v. Twombly550 U.S. 544, 555 (2007). “The pleaglimust contain something more
...than . .. a statement of facts that meredptes a suspicion [of] agally cognizable right of
action.” Id. (quoting 5 C. Wright & A. Miller Federal Practice and Procedu&1216, pp. 235-
236 (3d ed. 2004)). “[A] complaint must containfficient factual matter, accepted as true, to
‘state a claim to relief that is plausible on its faceAshcroft v. Igbal129 S. Ct. 1937, 1949
(2009) (quotingf'wombly 550 U.S. at 570). “A claim has fatplausibility when plaintiff plead

JJ

factual content that allows the court to drae teasonable inference that the defendant is lialp
for the misconduct alleged.Id. Dismissal is appropriate baseither on the lek of cognizable
legal theories or the lack pfeading sufficient facts to suppi@ognizable legal theories.
Balistreri v. Pacifica Police Dep/©901 F.2d 696, 699 (9th Cir. 1990).

In considering a motion to dismiss, the dauust accept as true the allegations of the

174

complaint in questiortiospital Bldg. Co. v. Rex Hosp. T,r§25 U.S. 738, 740 (1976), construg
the pleading in the light mo&dvorable to the party opposing tim®tion, and resoky all doubts in
the pleader’s favorJenkins v. McKeithen395 U.S. 411, 42%eh’g denied 396 U.S. 869
(1969). The court will “presume that generdéghtions embrace thoseegific facts that are
necessary to supgddhe claim.” Nat'l Org. for Womeninc. v. Scheidler510 U.S. 249, 256
(1994) (quotind_ujan v. Defenders of Wildlif&04 U.S. 555, 561 (1992)).

Pro se pleadings are heldadess stringent standard thtinse drafted by lawyers.
Haines v. Kerner404 U.S. 519, 520 (197Byetz v. Kelman773 F.2d 1026, 1027 n.1 (9th Cir

1985). The Ninth Circuit has hefdat the less stringent standard for pro se parties is now higher

in light of Igbal andTwombly but the court still camues to construe prge filings liberally.

Hebbe v. Pliler 627 F.3d 338, 342 (9th Cir. 2010). Howewhkg court’s liberal interpretation of
6




© 00 N o o b~ w N P

N N N N DN DN NN DN R P R R R R R R R R
® N o O~ W N P O © 0N O 0NN W N B o

a pro se litigant’s pleading mawpt supply essential elementsao€laim that are not pled?ena v.
Gardner, 976 F.2d 469, 471 (9th Cir. 199%¢ey v. Bd. of Regents of Univ. of Alas&@3 F.2d
266, 268 (9th Cir. 1982). Furthermore, “[tjhe dagmot required to accept legal conclusions
cast in the form of factual afiations if those conclusions canmeasonably be drawn from the
facts alleged.”Clegg v. Cult Awareness Netwod8 F.3d 752, 754-55 (9th Cir. 1994). Neithe
need the court accept unreasonable infergnor unwarranted dections of fact.W. Mining
Council v. Watt643 F.2d 618, 624 (9th Cir. 1981).

V. Judge Maquire’s Motion to Dismiss

Maguire moves to dismiss the claims asseatginst him, arguing thalaintiff has failed
to allege sufficient facts to state a claim fdrefe that plaintiff's claims against Judge Maguire
are barred by absolute immunity, and that pl#ifdiled to comply with the Government Claim
Act. ECF No. 5-1 at 2, 9-10.

Plaintiff's federal complaint is confusing addficult to follow. It contains few factual
allegations concerning Judge Maguire. It nzaleference to 42 U.S.C. § 1983, and liberally

construed, appears to allege thatige Maguire’s handling of phiff's state court case somehc

deprived plaintiff of his federallprotected rights. However, tlgeare so few actual facts allege

that it is difficult to disern precisely what facts form the basis for the claifkside from
plaintiff’'s unsupported conclusiotisat all defendants arrangedixed contest and denied him
access to the court, plaintiff's gniactual allegations against Judgaguire are that he ignored
plaintiff's notice of default andlways ruled against him andfewor of defendants. ECF No. 1
19 3.12, 3.13. Such claims are plainly bdrby absolute judicial immunityPierson v. Ray386
U.S. 547, 553-44 (1967) (observing that “[flew dives were more solidly established at
common law than the immunity of judges fronbildy for damages for acts committed within

their judicial jurisdiction.”);Mireles v. Wacp502 U.S. 9, 9, 12-13 (199®)olding that a judge

" Neither does the complaint contain allegatisufficient to state a claim against Magui

under sections 1985 and 1986, or 18 U.S.C. § 195365 (i.e. RICO). Furthermore, the one
manner in which the complaint is clear is thaimtiff names Judge Magueiiin this action due to
the adverse rulings he issued in the statetdigation—conduct for which he is clearly
immune.

7
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who authorized the police to usecegsive force to bring an attegnto his courtroom was, while

acting improperly, within the scopé judicial immunity because it related to the judge’s atten
to carry out a judicial function). “Such immunigpplies even if it leas ‘the genuinely wronge

defendant without civil redresgainst a prosecutor [or judgghose malicious or dishonest

action deprives him of liberty.”Ashelman v. Pop&93 F.2d 1072, 1075 (9th Cir. 1986) (citin\])
e

Imbler v. Pachtmam24 U.S. 409, 427, 96 S.Ct. 984, 47 L.Ed.2d 128 (1976)). Even “[g]ra
procedural errors or acts ina@dss of judicial authdy do not deprive a judgef this immunity.”
Id. (quotingSchucker v. Rockwop846 F.2d 1202, 1204 (9th Cir. 1988)). Furthermore, fede
immunity extends to suits for damages arising under 42 U.S.C. § T&@8npson v. City of Los
Angeles885 F.2d 1439, 1448yerruled on other grounds by Bull v. City and County of San
Franciscq 595 F.3d 964 (9th Cir. 2010) (noting tHgs]tates or governmeat entities that are

considered ‘arms of the state’ . . . ag persons within the meaning of 8§ 1983Hgfer v. Melg

1Y

npts
d

ral

502 U.S. 21, 25, 112 S.Ct. 358, 116 L.Ed.2d 301 (1991) (state officers are not persons within the

meaning of § 1983); Cal. Gov’'t Code 88 811.%i3eq (judicial officers are state officers).

Plaintiff has failed to allege &t Judge Maguire tookng action outside the spe of his judicial

capacity or lacked jurisdiction over his state t¢@ase, and plaintiff’'s section 1983 claims agafinst

Judge Maguire are barred.

Moreover, Judge Maguire is immune fronit sunder California lavas to the state law
supplemental claimsSee Soliz v. William3§4 Cal.App.4th 577, 587, 88 Cal.Rptr.2d 184
(Cal.Ct.App.1999) (finding a judge was immune, urstate law, from angction arising out of
his hallway comments to a litigant because thosengents were part of an effort to resolve th
case)Wilhite v. City of Bakersfie|®012 WL 273088 (E.D. Cal. Jan. 30, 2012) (noting that
“even if the state law claims presentation requeats could be met, the Judicial Defendants
entitled to state law immunities.”).

As plaintiff's federal claims and supplemengédte law claims against Judge Maguire
barred by absolute immunity, those mibstdismissed without leave to amer&ke Lopez v.
Smith 203 F.3d 1122, 1127-28 (9th Cir. 2000) (en bgbcjess it is cleathat no amendment
1
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can cure its defects, a prolggant is entitled to noticand an opportunity to amend the
complaint before dismissal).

VI. Defendants Orcutt and Taylor's Motions to Dismiss

Defendants Orcutt and Taylor both moveltemiss plaintiff's complaint, arguing that
plaintiff's complaint should be dmissed for failure to allegefégient facts to support a claim
for relief.

As notedsupra it is difficult to discern precisely vat claims plaintiff is attempting to
allege against each defendant. As discussed aplawetiff specifically icentifies eight purporte
causes of action: (1) arranging a fixenjust contest in court, (2)iliare to give plaintiff lawful
redress of grievances, (3) denial of plaintiff's rights to duegss, (4) fraud, (5) denial of acce
to the courts, (6) obstruction ofgice and abuse of process, fégligence, and (8) conspiracy.
The majority of these purported causes of action agpdag some sort of claim for denial of d
process in regards to his state court proceedssggECF No. 1 at 20-47. In addition to these
eight causes of action, plaifits caption page indicates that he is asserting claims under 42
U.S.C. 88 1983, 1985, 1986, 18 U.S.C. 88 1961-1965 (Rl&@t@)the Declaratory Judgment A
28 U.S.C. § 2201. As explained be&lplaintiff has failed to allegany federal claims for relief.

A. Federal Claims

1. 42 U.S.C. §1983

To the extent plaintiff asserts claimsder 42 U.S.C. 8§ 1983 against defendants Orcut
and Taylor, the claims fail because plaintiff In@s and cannot allege that Orcutt and Taylor a
state actors. To state a claimder § 1983, plaintiff must allegg) the violation of a federal
constitutional or statutory right; and (2) thia¢ violation was committed by a person acting ur
the color of state lawSee West v. Atkind87 U.S. 42, 48, (1988). Hemaintiff alleges that all
defendants “acted under CORGDF LAW, and under COLORF AUTHORITY, and under
COLOR OF JUSTICE.” ECF No. 1 1 2.20. Howevdaintiff's contenton that defendants are
state actors is premised on their having servettameys licensed to practice in Californiee
id. 11 2.13-2.17, 4.10. The fact that these defen@aatscensed by the SeaBar does not rend

them state actors for purposes of section 1983te@imply, attorneys in private practice are n
9
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state actors for purposes of section 1988e Simmons v. Sacramento County Superior Cour
318 F.3d 1156, 1161 (9th Cir. 2003).

“A person may become a state actor by conspwith a state official, or by engaging if

joint activity with state officials.”Price v. Hawaij 939 F.2d 702, 708 (9th Cir. 1991). Howeve

plaintiff's conclusory allegations that defemtig conspired to obstrupstice and abuse the
process are insufficient to show thia¢se defendants were state act@se Price v. HawgiB39
F.2d 702, 708 (9th Cir. 1991) (“[Clonclusory allégas, unsupported by facts, [will be] rejects
as insufficient to state a claim under the ORights Act”) (internalquotation marks omitted)
(second modification in original). Although pidiff asserts extravagant allegations of a
conspiracy by all defendants to deny him “his tighhave his day in court” (ECF No. 1 at 10,
1 2.21 (emphasis omitted)), regardless of his charaaten of his claimsis factual assertions
reduce to allegations of attorney malpractice.

As to Orcutt, plaintiff asserts in the complaiinat Orcutt “was initially hired to bring this
case to conclusion before a trial joyy of my peers. . .” that “Orcutt litigatgtvent through the
motions of the past two attorneys), then adkedn additional $25,000.00 to continue . . . " th
Orcutt participated in an ex gia proceeding with the judge and the Orcutt informed plaintiff
“that even if you win you're not going to get any money.” ECF No. 1 at 16 (emphasis omit

As to Taylor, the complaint simply allegesitishe is an attorney California and “was
present for all acts and/or omissions committed by [d]efendaldsdt 9, § 2.16. The complain
contains little or no other information as toylaa and plainly does stata claim as to her.
However, it is apparent from records of the statert proceedings (whicdre before this court g
the defendant’s request for judicradtice) that Taylor’'s role was simply to represent Orcultt in
plaintiff's legal malpractice lawsu ECF No. 17 at 4 - 95. Thus, it is clear that plaintiff cann

allege state actioas to Taylor.

Because plaintiff cannot allege facts dematstg that defendants Orcutt and Taylor are

state actors for purposes of UZS.C. § 1983, plaintiff's section 1983 claims against them
pursuant to must be disssed with prejudiceSee Simmon818 F.3d at 1161.

i
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2. 42U.5.C.§1985

Although not entirely clear, it appears thaiptiff attempts to brig his conspiracy claim
under 42 U.S.C. § 1985(3). ECF No. 1 at 1.ti8ac1985(3) creates a civil action for damage
caused by two or more persons who “conspire for the purpose of depriving” the injured

person of “the equal protection of the laws, or of equal privileges and immunities under the

and take or cause to be takenyact in furtherance of the objesftsuch conspiracy.” 42 U.S.C.

8 1985(3);see als® 1985(1) (creating a civil action for preventing an officer from performin
his or her duties); 8§ 1985(2) (cteey a civil action for obstructingistice or intimidating a party
witness, or jurorf. The elements of a § 1985(3) claim gf:the existence of a conspiracy to

deprive the plaintiff of thequal protection of the laws; (2h act in furtherance of the

conspiracy; and (3 resulting injury.Addisu v. Fred Meyer, Inc198 F.3d 1130, 1141 (9th Cir|

2000) (citingScott v. Rossl40 F.3d 1275, 1284 (9th Cir.1998)). eMirst element requires that
there be some racial or otherwise class-th&swidious discriminatory animus” for the
conspiracy.Bray v. Alexandria Women'’s Health Clinis06 U.S. 263, 268-69, 113 S.Ct. 753,
122 L.Ed.2d 34 (1993)rerice v. Pedersery69 F.2d 1398, 1402 (9th Cir.1985). Plaintiff's
complaint contains no such factual allegations.

Moreover, a plaintiff cannddtate a conspiracy claim urrd®@ 1985 in the absence of a
claim for deprivation of ghts under 42 U.S.C. § 1988ee Caldeira v. Cnty. of Kay&66 F.2d
1175, 1182 (9th Cir.1989) (holding that “the afis=of a section 1983 deprivation of rights
precludes a section 1985 cpiracy claim predicatedn the same allegations@ert. denied493

U.S. 817 (1989).

Here, plaintiff has not allegethat any of the defendants’ conduct was fueled by racial

animus. There is only one allegation in the clazimp regarding plaintiffgace. In relation to

plaintiff's cause of action for conspiracy, piaff states, “As youPlaintiff Dinh Nguy is a

8 The complaint does not contain any gdigons that defendants prevented Judge
Maguire from performing his duties. Nor are #hany allegations that defendants intimidated
party, witness, or juror. Whildnere are conclusory allegatioregarding obstruction of justice,
as far as the court can discerraiptiff appears to be alleging thifitere was a conspiracy betwe
defendants. Regardless, pt#its conclusion that defendantdbstructed justice, without any
factual allegations, is insufficient state a claim under 42 U.S.C. § 1985(2).
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naturalized Vietnam Citizen, thiae also claims DISCRIMINAION against all Defendants anc
their surrogate courts, under [the] Commerce Clause” ECF No. 1 1 4.50. Plaintiff has not
alleged facts showing that defendants’ conductiwasy way related to his race. Rather, he
simply characterizes his claim as one of discrimmmabased on the fact that he is a “naturaliz
Vietnam Citizen.” Such conclusory allegats are insufficient to establish race-based
discrimination.

Further, all of plaintiff's claims appear b& based on the same allegations. Specifica
that defendants conspired together to deprive plboithis day in court.As plaintiff is unable tg
maintain a section 1983 claim, to the extemtalleges a conspiraclaim under section 1985,
such claim must also be dismissed.

3. 42U.5.C.8§ 1986

Plaintiff also references 42.S.C 1986 in his complaint regarding damages for a violg
of his Civil Rights. ECF No. 1 at 6. Any awibrought pursuant to 42 U.S.C. § 1986 must al
be dismissed. To maintain a claim under 42 U.§.0986, the plaintiff musstablish that there
was a violation of section 1985, and that the @émt was in a position to stop the section 19
violation. McCalden v. Cal. Library Ass,955 F.2d 1214, 1223 (9th Cir. 1990); 42 U.S.C.

8§ 1986. As discussed above, plaintiff canndtigently allege a section 1985 claim and,
therefore, his section 1986aain must also be dismissed.
4. RICO

Plaintiff's complaint also references thadReteer Influenced and Corrupt Organizatio
Act (“RICQO”), 18 U.S.C. 88 196&t seq ECF No. 1 at 37. To state a civil RICO claim, a
plaintiff must allege: (1) conducf?) of an enterpsie, (3) through a patter(4) of racketeering
activity (known as “predicate acts”), (5) causingiry to plaintiff's business or property.
Sanford v. Memberworks, In&25 F.3d 550, 557 (9th Cir. 2010¥alter v. Drayson538 F.3d
1244, 1247 (9th Cir. 20085 rimmett v. Brown75 F.3d 506, 510 (9th Cir. 1996). The alleged
enterprise must exist “separate and apart franittherent in the pegtration of the alleged
[activity].” Chang v. Chen80 F.3d 1293, 1300-01 (9th Cir.1996). A “pattern of racketeerin

activity” means at least two criminal acts erarated by statute. 18 U.S.C. § 1961(1), (5)
12
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(including, among many others, maiird, wire fraud, and financialstitution fraud). Those sg

=

called “predicate acts” under RICO, if based dheory of fraudulent conduct, must be allege
with specificity in compliance with Rule 9(blchreiber Distrib. Co. v. ServWell Furniture Co
806 F.2d 1393, 1400-01 (9th Cir. 200glge also Lancaster Community Hospital v. Antelope
Valley Hospital Dist.940 F.2d 397, 405 (9th Cir. 1991) (holdiwwgh respect to the predicate act
of mail fraud that a plaintiff must allege witparticularity the time, place, and manner of each
act of fraud, plus the role efach defendant in each schem&lgn NeumarProductions, Inc. v.
Albright, 862 F.2d 1388, 1392-93 (9th Cir. 1988ineda v. Saxon Mortgage Servic2808 WL
5187813, at *4 (C.D. Cal. Dec. 10, 2008) (“It is rabugh for [plaintiff] to rely on mere labels
and conclusions” to establish a RICO claim btiteg plaintiff must gre each defendant notice
of the particular pradate act it participatesh and must allege each predicate act with
specificity)?

Plaintiff does not identify any predicatet & support his RICO claim. While the
complaint does purport to allege a claim for fraudréhs no indication thahis claim is related
to plaintiff's RICO claim. Fuahermore, plaintiff does not afje any factual allegations in
support of his conclusory claim of fraud. Simplyt, plaintiff's RICO caim rests solely on his
conclusory allegations that deféants colluded and conspired aggaihim. ECF No. 1 at 37.
Underlying that general allegation are the fewcsfics provided in t complaint which show
plaintiff is unhappy with how # state court litigation was hdled. Such allegations are
insufficient to establish a pattern of racketeg activity. Accordingy, this claim must be
dismissed. Further, although the dismissal of asprpleading for failuréo state a claim would
ordinarily be with leave to amend, the documérim the state court proceedings demonstrate
that any such amendment would be futile. As discussed previously, those documents

demonstrated that Orcutt merely representechipiiin an underlying state court lawsuit but was

® In conjunction with his RICO claim, plaiff also references the Hobbs Act, 18 U.S.C.
8§ 1951. ECF No. 1 at 37. The Hobbs Act, howgdlees not provide a private right of action.
See Stanard v. Nygre®58 F.3d 792, 794 (7th Cir. 2011) (noting that the Hobbs Act does not
provide a private right of action)ySB Elec. Co., Inc. v. RankRle Comm. to Stop the 2—Gate
Sys, 103 F.R.D. 417, 419 (N.D. Cal. 1984). Accordingly, to the extent plaintiff intended to @ssert
a claim under this act, it must besglissed without leave to amend.

13
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later sued by plaintiff in state court over diggitoncerning plaintiff's dissatisfaction with that
representation. Taylor simply represented @ricuthe latter malgactice case. Although

plaintiff wants to federalize thesclaims with conclusory allegations, the documentation from
state court proceedings demonstrate that he t@heed sufficient facts to state a claims undef
the various federal statutes that he cites.

5. DeclaratonRelief

Plaintiff's compliant also fferences the Declaratory Judgment Act. ECF No. 1 at 1.
Declaratory relief is a remedy, nan independent cause of actiddee, e.g., Morongo Band of
Mission Indians v. California State Board of Equalizafi8d9 F.2d 1197, 1201 (9th Cir. 1988)
(“The Declaratory Judgment Aanterely creates a remedy in cases otherwise within the court
jurisdiction; it does not constitute an independmatis for jurisdiction.”). To the extent
plaintiff's citation to tle Declaratory Judgment Act was intendedbe an independent cause of
action, it is duplicative of any refithat may be obtained from pidiff’'s other causes of actions
and therefore should be dissed without leave to amend.

B. State Law Claims

The complaint also purports &ssert various state law ctes. As far as the court can
discern, it appears that plaintggserts a procedural due proogasm under Article 1, Section 1
of the California Constitution based on “Arrangingiged Unjust Contest i€ourt,” “Failure to
Give plaintiff Lawful Redress of Grievance,afd, “Denial of Plaintiffs Lawful Access to the
Court,” and obstruction of justic&seeCounts 1-5. Plaintiff alsgppears to allege claims for
negligence and conspiracfeeCounts 7-8.

Defendant Orcutt argues thatee plaintiff has failed to alige a federal claim, the court
should decline to exercise supplemental jurisdiction over his statedamscl ECF No. 7 at 24,
ECF No. 17-1 at 2% A court may exercise supplemeritaisdiction over state-law claims that

are part of the “same case or controver28’U.S.C. § 1367(a). Where the court maintains

19 Defendant Taylor argues that plaintiff's st claims should be dismissed since the

the

S

alleged conduct is protected under California Code of Civil Procedure 8§ 425.16 and California’s

litigation privilege. ECF No. 17-1 at 25-31.
14
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federal jurisdiction over one claim, it maintaingigdiction over other related state-law claims
“and other parties—even parties not facing kegation that they viated federal law."Rhodes
v. Placer County2:09-cv-0489 MCE KJN PS, 2011 WI302240, at * 6 (E.D. Cal. Mar. 31,
2011).

As plaintiff has not alleged federal claim for relief, the court may decline to exercise
supplemental jurisdiction overahtiff's state law claimsSee Carlsbad Tech., Inc. v. HIF BIO

Inc., 556 U.S. 635, 639-40, 129 S.Ct. 1862, 173 L.Ed.2d 843 (2AMMMpgia Versicherungs

A.G. v. Schenker Int’l Inc344 F.3d 931, 936 (9th Cir. 2003); 28 U.S.C. § 1367(c) (“The district

courts may decline to exercise supplementasgliction over a claim under subsection (a) if . |.

the district court has dismissed all claims over Whiidas original jurisdiction.”). “[ljn the usu{
case in which all federal-law claims are eliminabedore trial, the batace of factors to be
considered under the penderigdiction doctrine—judicial emnomy, convenience, fairness, a
comity—will point toward declining to exerciserisdiction over the remaining state-law claim
Carnegie—Mellon Univ. v. Cohjld84 U.S. 343, 351 (1988). leed, “[n]eedless decisions of
state law should be avoided both as a matter oftg@nd to promote justice between the part
by procuring for them a surer-footeshding of the applicable law.United Mine Workers of

America v. Gibbs383 U.S. 715, 726 (1966). Because all of plaintiff's federal claims must b

=

€s,

e

dismissed, it is recommended that the courtidedo exercise supplemental jurisdiction over his

state law claims.

VIl.  Order to Show Cause

Defendants County of Yolo, Yolo County Supe Court, Jeff Stone, Marvin Marx, and
William Marder have not moved to dismiss the ctamy or otherwise appeared in this action.
However, it does not appear from the docket tivase defendants have been timely and prop
served. Therefore, plaintiff will be ordered to show cause why these defendants should nc

dismissed for failure to effect service of process within the time prescribed by Rule 4(m) a

for failure to comply with the Federal Rules o#{CProcedure and this court’s previous orders.

SeeECF No. 3; Fed. R. Civ. P. 4(ngee alsd~ed. R. Civ. P. 4(l)(1{requiring that proof of

service be made to the court); E.D. Cal. L2R0(b) (same); E.D. Cal. L.R. 110 (“Failure of
15
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counsel or of a party to comply with these Rules or with any order of the Court may be grdunds

for imposition by the Court of any and all sanctianshorized by statute or Rule or within the
inherent power of the Court.”); E.D. CalR..183 (“Any individual representing himself or
herself without an attorney mund by the Federal Rules of Cior Criminal Procedure and by
these Local Rules.”)Ghazali v. Moran46 F.3d 52, 53 (9th Cir. 1995) (“Failure to follow a
district court’s local rules is proper ground for dismissal.”). Faituto timely comply with this
order may result in sanctionsgclading a recommendation thatfediedants County of Yolo, Yolo
County Superior Court, Jeff Stone, Marvin Maand William Marder and/or this action be
dismissed for lack of prosecutionyfiailure to follow this court’orders and Local Rules, and/s
for failure to effect service of processthin the time prescribed by Rule 4(m).

Plaintiff also failed to appear at then& 11, 2014 hearing. Local Rule 230(i) provides
that “[a]bsent notice of intent to submit the matiarthe briefs, failure to appear [at the hearin
may be deemed withdrawal of the motion oppposition to the motion, in the discretion of thg
Court, or may result in the imposition of sanctions.” Failure to comply with the court’s Loc
Rules or the orders of this court “maydr@unds for imposition by the Court of any and all
sanctions authorized by sté or Rule or within tb inherent power of theddrt.” E.D. Cal. L.R.
110. Therefore, plaintiff is also ordered to shtause why sanctions should not be imposed 1
his failure to appear atehJune 11, 2014 hearing on defamdamotions to dismiss.

VIIl. Conclusion

Accordingly, it is hereby ORDERED that :

1. Plaintiff's motion for appointment of ant@mpreter, ECF No. 27, is denied as moot.

2. Plaintiff's motion to strike defendant €tt’s objections to his motion for appointme
of an interpreter, ECF No. 33, is denied as moot.

3. Plaintiff’'s motion to strike defendant Orcutt’s motion to dismiss, ECF No. 20, is

denied.

4. Plaintiff’'s motion to stkie Judge Maguire’s motion tosuhiss, ECF No, 21, is denied.

i
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5. Plaintiff shall show cause, in writing, withiourteen days from the date of this orde
why defendants County of Yolo, Yolo Countygrior Court, Jeff Stone, Marvin Marx, and
William Marder should not be dismissed for failtioeeffect service of process within the time
prescribed by Rule 4(m) and/or for failurecmmply with the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure
and this court’s orders.

6. Plaintiff shall show cause, in writing, withiourteen days from the date of this orde
why sanctions should not be imposed for hikifa to appear at thJune 11, 2014 hearing.

7. Failure to comply with this order magsult in a recommendation that this action be
dismissed for failure to prosecute andéalure to comply with court ordersSeeFed. R. Civ. P.
41(b); E.D. Cal. L.R. 110.

Further, it is RECOMMENDED that:

1. Defendant Maguire’s motion to dismiE€F No. 5, be grantemhd that plaintiff's
claims against Judge Maguire be dssed without leave to amend; and

2. Defendants Orcutt and Taylor's motiongltemiss, ECF No. 6, 17, be granted and {
plaintiff's claims against Orcutt and Taylbe dismissed without leave to amend.

These findings and recommendations are submitted to the United States District Juy
assigned to the case, pursuanthe provisions of 28 U.S.C. 8 639(I). Within fourteen days
after being served with these findings aadommendations, any party may file written
objections with the court andrse a copy on all parties. Sualdocument should be captioned
“Objections to Magistrate JudgeFsndings and Recommendationgrailure to file objections
within the specified time may waive the rigbtappeal the Disict Court’s order.Turner v.

Duncan 158 F.3d 449, 455 (9th Cir. 1998)artinez v. YIst951 F.2d 1153 (9th Cir. 1991).

EDMUND F. BRENNAN
UNITED STATES MAGISTRATE JUDGE

DATED: September 9, 2014.
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